DATED 10 AUGUST 2022

CONSULTANCY AGREEMENT

FOR PREPARATORY TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY WORK FOR THE FOLKESTONE – A BRIGHTER FUTURE PROJECT

BETWEEN

THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF FOLKESTONE AND HYTHE

AND

WE MADE THAT LLP

© The District Council of Folkestone and Hythe 2018 Legal Services Civic Centre Castle Hill Avenue Folkestone, Kent CT20 2QY

LS.DK draft 03.08.18, amended by IL September 2021

CONTENTS

CLAUSE			
1.	Interpretation		
2.	Term of engagement		
3.	Duties and obligations		
4.	Fees6		
5.	Expenses		
6.	Other activities		
7.	Confidential information		
8.	Data protection		
9.	Intellectual property		
10.	Insurance and liability9		
11.	Termination9		
12.	Obligations on termination		
13.	freedom of information		
14.	Status		
15.	Compliance with anti-slavery and human trafficking laws		
16.	Notices		
17.	Entire agreement		
18.	Variation		
19.	Counterparts		
20.	Third party rights		
21.	Governing law		
22.	Jurisdiction		
SCHEDULE			
SCHED	ULE 1: SPECIFICATION		
SCHED	OULE 2: CONSULTANT'S QUOTATION		
SCHED	ULE 3: PAYMENT SCHEDULE		

THIS AGREEMENT is dated 10th AUGUST 2022

BETWEEN

(1) THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF FOLKESTONE AND HYTHE of the Civic Centre, Castle Hill Avenue, Folkestone, Kent CT20 2QY (the "Council");

AND

(2) **WE MADE THAT LLP** (Company registration number, OC367789) whose registered address is 6a St Andrews Court, Thame, OX9 3WT (the "Consultant")

(hereinafter collectively "the Parties" and independently "the Party")

WHEREAS the Council requires professional services to be rendered for the implementation of the Preparatory Topographic Survey work for the "Folkestone – A Brighter Future Project" and the Consultant has agreed to render those services in accordance with this Consultancy Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. INTERPRETATION

The following definitions and rules of interpretation apply in this Agreement (unless the context requires otherwise).

1.1 Definitions:

Capacity: as agent, consultant, director, employee, owner, partner, shareholder or in any other capacity.

Commencement Date: 8th August 2022

Council Property: all documents, books, manuals, materials, records, correspondence, papers and information (on whatever media and wherever located) relating to the affairs of the Council or its or their customers and business contacts, and any equipment, keys, hardware or software provided for the Consultant's use by the Council during the Engagement, and any data or documents (including copies) produced, maintained or stored by the Consultant on the Council or the Consultant's computer systems or other electronic equipment during the Engagement.

Confidential Information: information in whatever form (including without limitation, in written, oral, visual or electronic form or on any magnetic or optical disk or memory and wherever located) relating to the business, customers, suppliers products, affairs and finances of the Council for the time being confidential to the Council and trade secrets including, without limitation, technical data and know-how relating to the Council or any of its suppliers, customers, agents, distributors, shareholders, management or business contacts, including (but not limited to) information that the Consultant creates, develops, receives or obtains in connection

with his Engagement, whether or not such information (if in anything other than oral form) is marked confidential.

Data Protection Legislation: all applicable data protection and privacy legislation in force from time to time in the UK including the retained EU law version of the General Data Protection Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/679) (UK GDPR), the Data Protection Act 2018 (and regulations made thereafter) or any successor legislation, and all other legislation and regulatory requirements in force from time to time which apply to a party relating to the use of personal data (including, without limitation, the privacy of electronic communications).

Engagement: the engagement of the Consultant by the Council on the terms of this Agreement.

Holding Company: has the meaning given in clause 1.7.

Insurance Policies: commercial general liability insurance cover, professional indemnity insurance cover, employer's liability insurance cover and public liability insurance cover.

Intellectual Property Rights: patents, utility models, rights to Inventions, copyright and neighbouring and related rights, moral rights, trademarks and service marks, business names and domain names, rights in get-up and trade dress, goodwill and the right to sue for passing off or unfair competition, rights in designs, rights in computer software, database rights, rights to use, and protect the confidentiality of, confidential information (including know-how and trade secrets) and all other intellectual property rights, in each case whether registered or unregistered and including all applications and rights to apply for and be granted, renewals or extensions of, and rights to claim priority from, such rights and all similar or equivalent rights or forms of protection which subsist or will subsist now or in the future in any part of the world.

Invention: any invention, idea, discovery, development, improvement or innovation made by the Consultant in the provision of the Services, whether or not patentable or capable of registration, and whether or not recorded in any medium.

Request for Information: a request for information or an apparent request under the FOIA or the Environment Information Regulations.

Services: the services provided by the Consultant in a consultancy capacity for the Council as more particularly described in the 0 1 attached hereto.

Sub-consultant: a Sub-consultant engaged by the Consultant under the terms of clause 3.3.

subsidiary: has the meaning given in clause 1.7.

Termination Date: the date of termination of this Agreement, howsoever arising.

Works: all records, reports, documents, papers, drawings, designs, transparencies, photos, graphics, logos, typographical arrangements, software, and all other materials in whatever form, including but not limited to hard copy and electronic form, prepared by the Consultant in the provision of the Services.

- 1.2 The headings in this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not affect its construction.
- 1.3 A reference to a particular law is a reference to it as it is in force for the time being taking account of any amendment, extension, or re-enactment and includes any subordinate legislation for the time being in force made under it.
- 1.4 Unless the context otherwise requires, a reference to one gender shall include a reference to the other genders.
- 1.5 Unless the context otherwise requires, words in the singular shall include the plural and in the plural shall include the singular.
- 1.6 The Schedules form part of this Agreement and shall have effect as if set out in full in the body of this Agreement. Any reference to this Agreement includes the Schedules.
- 1.7 A reference to a **Holding Company** or a **subsidiary** means a holding company or a subsidiary (as the case may be) as defined in section 1159 of the Companies Act 2006 and a company shall be treated, for the purposes only of the membership requirement contained in sections 1159(1)(b) and (c), as a member of another company even if its shares in that other company are registered in the name of (a) another person (or its nominee), whether by way of security or in connection with the taking of security, or (b) as a nominee.

2. TERM OF ENGAGEMENT

- 2.1 The Council shall engage the Consultant and the Consultant shall provide the Services on the terms of this Agreement.
- 2.2 The Engagement shall be deemed to have commenced on the Commencement Date and (subject to clause 11 below) shall continue (unless extended at the mutual agreement of the Parties) until terminated:
 - (a) for a period of 3 months; or
 - (b) until either party giving to the other not less than 4 weeks' prior written notice.

3. DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS

- 3.1 During the Engagement the Consultant shall:
 - (a) provide the Services with all due care, skill and ability and use their best endeavours to promote the interests of the Council; and

- (b) promptly give to the Council all such information and reports as it may reasonably require in connection with matters relating to the provision of the Services.
- 3.2 If the Consultant is unable to provide the Services due to illness or injury, they shall advise the Council of that fact as soon as reasonably practicable. For the avoidance of doubt, no fee shall be payable in accordance with clause 4 in respect of any period during which the Services are not provided.
- 3.3 The Consultant may, with the prior written approval of the Council and subject to the following proviso, appoint a suitably qualified and skilled Sub-consultant to perform the Services on his behalf. If the Council accepts the Sub-consultant, the Consultant shall continue to invoice the Council in accordance with clause 4 and shall be responsible for the remuneration of the Sub-consultant. For the avoidance of doubt, the Consultant will continue to be subject to all duties and obligations under this Agreement for the duration of the appointment of the Sub-consultant.
- 3.4 The Consultant undertakes that the terms and conditions of any sub-contract it enters into with a Sub-consultant shall (where applicable) comply with section 113 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and result in payments being made not later than thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of a relevant invoice from the Sub-Consultant.
- 3.5 The Consultant shall use reasonable endeavours to ensure that they are available at all times on reasonable notice to provide such assistance or information as the Council may require.
- 3.6 Unless they have been specifically authorised to do so by the Council in writing, the Consultant shall not:
 - (a) have any authority to incur any expenditure in the name of or for the account of the Council; or
 - (b) hold themselves out as having authority to bind the Council.
- 3.7 The Consultant shall comply with all reasonable standards of safety and comply with all reasonable standards of safety and comply with the Council's health and safety procedures from time to time in force at the premises where the Services are provided and report to the Council any unsafe working conditions or practices.
- 3.8 The Consultant shall comply with the Council's policies on social media, use of information and communication systems, anti-harassment and bullying, no smoking, dress code and substance misuse.
- 3.9 The Consultant undertakes to the Council that during the Engagement they shall take all reasonable steps to offer (or cause to be offered) to the Council any business

opportunities as soon as practicable after the same shall have come to their knowledge and in any event before the same shall have been offered by the Consultant (or caused by the Consultant to be offered) to any other party.

- 3.10 The Consultant may use a third party to perform any administrative, clerical or secretarial functions which are reasonably incidental to the provision of the Services provided that:
 - (a) the Council will not be liable to bear the cost of such functions; and
 - (b) at the Council's request the third party shall be required to enter into direct undertakings with the Council, including with regard to confidentiality.

3.11 The Consultant shall:

- (a) comply with all applicable laws, regulations, codes and sanctions relating to anti-bribery and anti-corruption including but not limited to the Bribery Act 2010 (Relevant Requirements);
- (b) not engage in any activity, practice or conduct which would constitute an offence under sections 1, 2 or 6 of the Bribery Act 2010 if such activity, practice or conduct had been carried out in the UK;
- (c) comply with the Council's Ethics and Anti-bribery and Anti-corruption Policies in each case as the Council or the relevant industry body may update them from time to time (**Relevant Policies**);
- (d) promptly report to the Council any request or demand for any undue financial or other advantage of any kind received by the Consultant in connection with the performance of this Agreement;
- (e) ensure that all persons associated with the Consultant or other persons who are performing services or providing goods in connection with this Agreement comply with this clause 3.11; and
- (f) annually certify to the Council in writing, their compliance with this clause 33.11.11. The Consultant shall provide such supporting evidence of compliance as the Council may reasonably request.
- 3.12 Failure to comply with clause 3.11 may result in the immediate termination of this Agreement.

3.13 The Consultant shall:

- (a) not engage in any activity, practice or conduct which would constitute either:
 - (i) a UK tax evasion facilitation offence under section 45(1) of the Criminal Finances Act 2017; or
 - (ii) a foreign tax evasion facilitation offence under section 46(1) of the Criminal Finances Act 2017;

- (b) promptly report to the Council any request or demand from a third party to facilitate the evasion of tax within the meaning of Part 3 of the Criminal Finances Act 2017 or any suspected tax evasion offences or facilitation of tax evasion offences, whether under UK law or under the law of any foreign country, in connection with the performance of this Agreement;
- (c) ensure that all persons associated with the Consultant or other persons who are performing services or providing goods in connection with this Agreement comply with this clause 3.13; and
- (d) annually certify to the Council in writing compliance with this Clause 3.13 by the Consultant and all persons associated with the Consultant or other persons who are performing services or providing goods in connection with this Agreement. The Consultant shall provide such supporting evidence of compliance as the Council may reasonably request.
- 3.14 Failure to comply with Clause 3.13 may result in the immediate termination of this Agreement.
- 3.15 The Consultant undertakes that the terms and conditions of any sub-contract or sub-consultancy agreement it enters into with a sub-contractor or sub-consultant shall comply with section 113 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and result in payments being made not later than thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of a relevant invoice from the sub-contractor or sub-consultant.

4. FEES

- 4.1 In consideration of the Services to be rendered by the Consultant in accordance with this Agreement the Council shall make Payments to the Consultant for the provision of the Services as follows:
 - (a) payments in respect of the Services as set out in the Payment Schedule as contained in Schedule 3 and in accordance with clause 4.2
 - (b) such additional Consultancy Fees (if any) as shall from time to time be determined by the Council having regard to the Services rendered by the Consultant.
- 4.2 The Council shall pay each invoice submitted by the Consultant for Services successfully rendered in accordance with this Agreement within 30 days of receipt thereof.
- 4.3 The Council shall accept and process for payment an electronic invoice submitted for payment by the Consultant where the invoice is undisputed and where it complies with the standard on electronic invoicing.

- 4.4 For the purposes of clause 4.3 an electronic invoice complies with the standard on electronic invoicing where it complies with the European standard and any of the syntaxes published in Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2017/1870.
- 4.5 The Council shall be entitled to deduct from the fees (and any other sums) due to the Consultant any sums that the Consultant may owe to the Council at any time.
- 4.6 Payment in full or in part of the fees claimed under clause 4 or any expenses claimed under clause 5 shall be without prejudice to any claims or rights of the Council against the Consultant in respect of the provision of the Services.

5. EXPENSES

- 5.1 The Consultant shall bear his own expenses incurred in the course of the Engagement.
- 5.2 If the Consultant is required to travel abroad in the course of the Engagement he shall be responsible for any necessary insurances, inoculations and immigration requirements.

6. OTHER ACTIVITIES

Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent the Consultant from being engaged, concerned or having any financial interest in any Capacity in any other business, trade, profession or occupation during the Engagement provided that:

- (a) such activity does not cause a breach of any of the Consultant's obligations under this Agreement;
- (b) the Consultant shall not engage in any such activity if it relates to a business which is similar to or in any way competitive with the role of the Council without the prior written consent of the Council (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld); and
- (c) the Consultant shall give priority to the provision of the Services to the Council over any other business activities undertaken by the Consultant during the course of the Engagement.

7. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

7.1 The Consultant acknowledges that in the course of the Engagement they may have access to Confidential Information. The Consultant has therefore agreed to accept the restrictions in this clause 7.

- 7.2 The Consultant shall not (except in the proper course of their duties), either during the Engagement or at any time after the Termination Date, use or disclose to any third party (and shall use their best endeavours to prevent the publication or disclosure of) any Confidential Information. This restriction does not apply to:
 - (a) any use or disclosure authorised by the Council or required by law; or
 - (b) any information which is already in, or comes into, the public domain otherwise than through the Consultant's unauthorised disclosure.
- 7.3 At any stage during the Engagement, the Consultant will promptly on request return all and any Council Property in his possession to the Council.
- 7.4 Nothing in this clause 7 shall prevent the Consultant or the Council (or any of its officers, employees, workers or agents) from:
 - (a) reporting a suspected criminal offence to the police or any law enforcement agency or co-operating with the police or any law enforcement agency regarding a criminal investigation or prosecution; or
 - (b) doing or saying anything that is required by HMRC or a regulator, ombudsman or supervisory authority; or
 - (c) whether required to or not, making a disclosure to, or co-operating with any investigation by, HMRC or a regulator, ombudsman or supervisory authority regarding any misconduct, wrongdoing or serious breach of regulatory requirements (including giving evidence at a hearing); or
 - (d) complying with an order from a court or tribunal to disclose or give evidence; or
 - (e) making any other disclosure as required by law.

8. DATA PROTECTION

8.1 Not used – the parties acknowledge that there is no data sharing or processing as a result of this agreement.

9. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

- 9.1 In the absence of prior written agreement by the Council to the contrary, all Intellectual Property Rights created by the Consultant or the Consultant's personnel:
 - (a) in the course of performing the Services; or
 - (b) exclusively for the purpose of performing the Services

shall vest in the Council on creation.

9.2 The Consultant shall indemnify the Council against all claims, demands, actions, costs, expenses (including legal costs and disbursements on a solicitor and client basis), losses and damages arising from or incurred by reason of any infringement or alleged infringement (including the defence of such alleged infringement) of any Intellectual Property Right by the availability of the Services, except to the extent that they have been caused by or contributed to by the Council's acts or omissions.

10. INSURANCE AND LIABILITY

- 10.1 The Consultant shall have liability for and shall indemnify the Council for any loss, liability, costs (including reasonable legal costs), damages or expenses arising from any breach by the Consultant or a Sub-consultant engaged by the Consultant of the terms of this Agreement including any negligent or reckless act, omission or default in the provision of the Services and shall accordingly maintain in force during the Engagement full and comprehensive Insurance Policies.
- 10.2 The Consultant shall ensure that the Insurance Policies are taken out with reputable insurers acceptable to the Council and that the level of cover and other terms of insurance are acceptable to and agreed by the Council.
- 10.3 The Consultant shall on request supply to the Council evidence of such Insurance Policies and evidence that the relevant premiums have been paid.
- 10.4 The Consultant shall comply with all terms and conditions of the Insurance Policies at all times. If cover under the Insurance Policies shall lapse or not be renewed or be changed in any material way or if the Consultant is aware of any reason why the cover under the Insurance Policies may lapse or not be renewed or be changed in any material way, the Consultant shall notify the Council without delay.

11. TERMINATION

- 11.1 Notwithstanding the provisions of clause 2.2, the Council may terminate the Engagement with immediate effect with no liability to make any further payment to the Consultant (other than in respect of amounts accrued before the Termination Date) if at any time the Consultant:
 - (a) commits any gross misconduct affecting the Council;
 - (b) commits any serious or repeated breach or non-observance of any of the provisions of this Agreement or refuses or neglects to comply with any reasonable and lawful directions of the Council;
 - (c) is convicted of any criminal offence (other than an offence under any road traffic legislation in the United Kingdom or elsewhere for which a fine or non-custodial penalty is imposed);

- (d) is in the reasonable opinion of the Council negligent or incompetent in the performance of the Services;
- (e) is declared bankrupt or makes any arrangement with or for the benefit of their creditors or has a county court administration order made against them under the County Court Act 1984;
- (f) is incapacitated (including by reason of illness or accident) from providing the Services for an aggregate period of 30 days in any 52-week consecutive period;
- (g) commits any fraud or dishonesty or acts in any manner which in the opinion of the Council brings or is likely to bring the Consultant or the Council into disrepute or is materially adverse to the interests of the Council;
- (h) commits any breach of the Council's policies and procedures; or
- (i) commits any offence under the Bribery Act 2010;
- (j) commits a UK tax evasion facilitation offence under section 45(1) of the Criminal Finances Act 2017 or a foreign tax evasion facilitation offence under section 46(1) of the Criminal Finances Act 2017.
- 11.2 The rights of the Council under clause 11.1 are without prejudice to any other rights that it might have at law to terminate the Engagement or to accept any breach of this Agreement on the part of the Consultant as having brought the Agreement to an end. Any delay by the Council in exercising its rights to terminate shall not constitute a waiver of these rights.

12. OBLIGATIONS ON TERMINATION

On the Termination Date the Consultant shall:

- (a) immediately deliver to the Council all Council Property and original Confidential Information in their possession or under his control;
- (b) subject to the Council's data retention guidelines, irretrievably delete any information relating to the Council stored on any magnetic or optical disk or memory (including but not limited to any Confidential Information) and all matter derived from such sources which is in their possession or under their control outside the premises of the Council. This obligation includes requiring any sub-contractor to delete such information where applicable; and
- (c) provide a signed statement that they have complied fully with their obligations under this clause 12, together with such evidence of compliance as the Council may reasonably request.

13. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

- 13.1 The Consultant acknowledges that the Council is subject to the requirements of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 ("the FOIA") and the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 ("the EIRs"), in each case as may be amended from time to time. The Consultant undertakes:
 - (a) to provide all necessary assistance and cooperation as reasonably requested by the Council to enable the Council to comply with its obligations under the FOIA and EIRs:
 - (b) to transfer to the Council all Requests for Information relating to this Agreement that it receives as soon as practicable and in any event within 2 Working Days of receipt;
 - (c) to provide the Council with a copy of all information belonging to the Council requested in the Request For Information which is in its possession or control in the form that the Council requires within 5 Working Days (or such other period as the Council may reasonably specify) of the Council's request for such Information; and
 - (d) not to respond directly to a Request For Information unless authorised in writing to do so by the Council.
- 13.2 The Consultant acknowledges that the Council may be required under the FOIA and EIRs to disclose information without consulting or obtaining consent from the Consultant. The Council shall take reasonable steps to notify the Consultant of a Request For Information (in accordance with the Cabinet Office's Freedom of Information Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the FOIA) to the extent that it is permissible and reasonably practical for it to do so but (notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement) the Consultant accept that the Council shall determine in its absolute discretion whether any information is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the FOIA and/or the EIRs.

14. STATUS

- 14.1 The relationship of the Consultant to the Council will be that of independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement shall render any employee, worker, agent or partner of the Consultant to be an employee, worker, agent or partner of the Council and the Consultant shall not hold themselves out as such.
- 14.2 This Agreement constitutes a contract for the provision of services and not a contract of employment and accordingly the Consultant shall be fully responsible for and shall indemnify the Council for and in respect of:
 - (a) any income tax, National Insurance and social security contributions and any other liability, deduction, contribution, assessment or claim arising from or made in connection with the performance of the Services, where the recovery

is not prohibited by law. The Consultant shall further indemnify the Council against all reasonable costs, expenses and any penalty, fine or interest incurred or payable by the Council in connection with or in consequence of any such liability, deduction, contribution, assessment or claim other than where the latter arise out of the Council's negligence or wilful default;

- (b) any liability arising from any employment-related claim or any claim based on worker status (including reasonable costs and expenses) brought by the Consultant or any Sub-consultant against the Council arising out of or in connection with the provision of the Services, except where such claim is as a result of any act or omission of the Council.
- 14.3 The Council may at its option satisfy such indemnity (in whole or in part) by way of deduction from any payments due to the Consultant.

15. COMPLIANCE WITH ANTI-SLAVERY AND HUMAN TRAFFICKING LAWS

- 15.1 In performing its obligations under this Agreement, the Consultant shall:
 - (a) comply with all applicable anti-slavery and human trafficking laws, statutes, regulations and codes from time to time in force including but not limited to the Modern Slavery Act 2015; and
 - (b) not engage in any activity, practice or conduct that would constitute an offence under sections 1, 2 or 4, of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 if such activity, practice or conduct were carried out in the UK; and
 - (c) include in its contracts with its subcontractors and suppliers anti-slavery and human trafficking provisions that are at least as onerous as those set out in this clause 15.
- 15.2 The Consultant represents and warrants that:
 - (d) neither the Consultant nor any of its officers, employees or other persons associated with it:
 - (i) has been convicted of any offence involving slavery and human trafficking; and
 - (ii) to the best of its knowledge, has been or is the subject of any investigation, inquiry or enforcement proceedings by any governmental, administrative or regulatory body regarding any offence or alleged offence of or in connection with slavery and human trafficking.
- 15.3 The Consultant shall implement due diligence procedures for its subcontractors, and suppliers and other participants in its supply chains, to ensure that there is no slavery or human trafficking in its supply chains.

15.4 The Consultant shall notify the Council as soon as it becomes aware of any actual or suspected slavery or human trafficking in a supply chain which has a connection with this Agreement.

15.5 The Consultant shall:

- (a) maintain a complete set of records to trace the supply chain of all Goods and Services provided to the Council in connection with this Agreement; and
- (b) permit the Council and its third party representatives, on reasonable notice during normal business hours to have access to and take copies of the Consultant's records and any other information and to meet with the Council's personnel to audit the Council's compliance with its obligations this clause.
- 15.6 The Consultant shall implement a system of training for its employees to ensure compliance with anti-slavery and human trafficking laws, statutes, regulations and codes.
- 15.7 The Consultant shall keep records of all training offered and completed by its employees to ensure compliance with anti-slavery and human trafficking laws, statutes, regulations and codes and shall make a copy of the record available to the Council on request.
- 15.8 The Consultant shall indemnify the Council against any losses, liabilities, damages, costs (including but not limited to legal fees) and expenses incurred by or awarded against the Council as a result of its failure to comply with anti-slavery and human trafficking laws, statutes, regulations and codes.
- 15.9 The Consultant represents, warrants and undertakes that it conducts its business in a manner that is consistent with anti-slavery and human trafficking laws, statutes, regulations and codes.
- 15.10 The Council may terminate the agreement with immediate effect by giving written notice to the Consultant if the Consultant fails to comply with anti-slavery and human trafficking laws, statutes, regulations and codes.

16. NOTICES

- Any notice or other communication given to a party under or in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be:
 - (a) delivered by hand or by pre-paid first-class post or other next working day delivery service at the address given in this Agreement or as otherwise notified in writing to the other party.

(b) sent by email to

<u>@folkestone-hythe.gov.uk</u> on behalf of the Council; or <u>@wemadethat.co.uk</u> on behalf of the Consultant.

- 16.2 Any notice or communication shall be deemed to have been received:
 - (a) if delivered by hand, on signature of a delivery receipt or at the time the notice is left at the address given in this Agreement;
 - (b) if sent by pre-paid first-class post or other next working day delivery service, at 9.00 am on the second Business Day after posting.
 - (c) if sent by email, at 9.00 am on the next Business Day after transmission.
- 16.3 If deemed receipt under clause 16.2 would occur outside business hours in the place of receipt, it shall be deferred until business hours resume. In this clause 16.3 business hours means 9.00am to 5.00pm Monday to Friday on a day that is not a public holiday in the place of receipt.
- 16.4 This clause does not apply to the service of any proceedings or other documents in any legal action or, where applicable, any arbitration or other method of dispute resolution.
- 16.5 A notice given under this Agreement is not valid if sent by e-mail.

17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

- 17.1 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes and extinguishes all previous agreements, promises, assurances, warranties, representations and understandings between them, whether written or oral, relating to its subject matter.
- 17.2 Each party acknowledges that in entering into this Agreement it does not rely on, and shall have no remedies in respect of, any statement, representation, assurance or warranty (whether made innocently or negligently) that is not set out in this Agreement.
- 17.3 Each party agrees that it shall have no claim for innocent or negligent misrepresentation or negligent misstatement based on any statement in this Agreement.
- 17.4 Nothing in this clause shall limit or exclude any liability for fraud.

18. VARIATION

No variation of this Agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by the parties (or their authorised representatives).

19. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall constitute a duplicate original, but all the counterparts shall together constitute the one agreement.

20. THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

- 20.1 Except as expressly provided elsewhere in this Agreement, a person who is not a party to this Agreement shall not have any rights under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce any term of this Agreement. This does not affect any right or remedy of a third party which exists, or is available, apart from that Act.
- 20.2 The rights of the parties to terminate, rescind or agree any variation, waiver or settlement under this Agreement are not subject to the consent of any other person.

21. GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement and any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with it or its subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims) shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of England and Wales.

22. JURISDICTION

Each party irrevocably agrees that the courts of England and Wales shall have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or its subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have entered into this Consultancy Agreement on the day and year first above written

For and on behalf of

THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF FOLKESTONE AND HYTHE

Authorised signatory	
For and on behalf of WE MADE THAT LLP	
Signature:	

SCHEDULE 1: SPECIFICATION

There is a requirement to continue work in preparation for the "Folkestone – A Brighter Future" (FABF) project which is to be submitted for Levelling Up Funding (LUF) in round 2.

This work is to commission and manage a Topograhic Survey of Folkestone Town Centre. We Made That will use a specialist company – Plowman Craven – to undertake this survey.

The output from this work will be provided for the procurement process of further project design to RIBA stage 3 and 4 and construction, once approval for the LUF bid has been received.

SCHEDULE 2: CONSULTANT'S QUOTATION

We Made That

Attn

Folkestone & Hythe District Council Oivic Centre Castle Hill Avenue Folkestone OT20 2QY

Subject

Folkestone Priority Projects

Topographic survey contract management

Date

01.07.2022

As discussed we would be happy to manage the topographic survey Contract for the LUF project. We would normally charge a 10% management fee. See below two options and attached quotes from Warner Surveys and from Plowman Craven

Option 1: Warner Surveys

Warner Surveys' quote as they have a quicker turnaround time (25 working days plus 5 day lead in) and we have experience working with them.

- Methodology Option 2 Mobile Mapping Survey: £28,780.00
- 10% We Made That management fee: £2,878.00

Total: £31,669

Option 2: Plowman Craven

Survey will be delivered 8 weeks after commencement on site. Priority areas will be delivered after 5 weeks. They Currently have a 2 week lead in time from instruction.

- Topographical survey: £25,995
- 10% We Made That management fee: £2,599.50

Total: £28,594.5

Please do not hesitate to get in touch if you require anything further. Otherwise, we look forward to hearing from you.

Yours sincerely,



For and on behalf of We Made That LLP

London Unit 21 Tower Workshops 58 Riley Road London SE13DG +44 (0)20 7252 3400

Manchester Jactin House 24 Hood Street Ancosts Manchester M4 6WX +44 (0)(61 9743206

studio@wernadethat.co.uk wernadethat.co.uk

We Made That LLP Registered in England & Wales Reg no. OC367789 VAT no. 121876714

SCHEDULE 3: PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Subject to clause 4.2 (receipt of a valid invoice from the Consultant),

£14,297.50 shall be due from the commencement date; and

£14,297.50 shall be due following completion and delivery of the survey outputs.